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ROWING CANADA AVIRON

Rowing Canada Aviron (RCA) leads rowing in Canada as a trusted  
partner and role model. A vibrant community of thriving clubs  
and events, embracing multi-disciplines of indoor, beach,  
coastal, touring and flat-water rowing. Rowing is social,  
diverse, safe and inclusive sport for all Canadians.  
A model for sport as a driver of physical and mental  
wellbeing, with a focus on individual growth, and  
the opportunity for Canadians to be at their best  
at home and abroad.



It has been my privilege and my pleasure to  
work closely with so many of you to grow rowing 
across Canada.

This has been a year of change for Rowing Canada 
Aviron (RCA). We began by welcoming a new CEO 
to lead our organization. Jeff Powell has dedicated 
time this year to understanding our organization, 
its people, and both its strengths and weaknesses, 
giving him a deeper understanding as to what 
drives us. I look forward to the changes that these 
insights will bring to move us to the next level.

As we move to the next level, it is vital to expand 
rowing opportunities for all to keep our sport 
strong. We must continue to create accessible 
pathways for anyone interested in rowing, whether 
for competition or recreation, regardless of age. 
Also, to support this growth, we must continue 
to engage individuals as coaches, umpires, 
administrators, and the many who lend a hand 
to our sport. As dedicated volunteers manage 
the rowing support system, offering their time 
and expertise to enable both competitive and 
recreational opportunities, it is important that we 
consistently acknowledge and value  
their contributions.

Thank you to all who have supported the ongoing 
development of the National Training Centre. 
Grants and donations have generated more than 
$3 million, making meaningful improvements to 
the site possible. Like any major project, it has not 
gone without impediments. Still, we continue to 
progress in the development of assets to ensure 
safe and accessible conditions for our National 
Team members and our aspiring young athletes 
through camps and training opportunities.

The Canadian sport system is approaching a period 
of significant transformation. RCA participated 
in research undertaken by the Future of Sport 
Commission. The Commission’s interim report both 
highlights and validates longstanding concerns 
within the system. Among the recommendations is 
the establishment of a new National Sport Entity 
(NSE) to provide cohesive national leadership in 
sport and physical activity as a strategic response 
to current challenges. The coming years are 
expected to be pivotal as these recommendations 
are implemented. RCA will continue to engage to 
ensure our perspectives are represented as these 
changes take shape across Canada.

Our solid relationship with World Rowing (WR) 
enables us to respectfully bring forward matters 
of concern and be advocates for change. Over the 
course of this year, Canada has worked closely 
with 3 other nations on a proposal to change the 
WR Statutes to increase continental diversity at 
the Executive Committee level. In September, at 
this year’s WR Congress held in Shanghai, the 
proposal was overwhelmingly supported by the 
membership. Also at Congress, our own Dr. Mike 
Wilkinson was elected as Chair of the WR Sports 
Medicine Commission. Dr. Mike, along with five 
other Canadians, serve on WR Commissions and 
although Tricia Smith has finished her term as 
Vice President, she will continue as an honourary 
WR Council Member. Canada is recognized and 
respected when we speak Congress. Our active 
participation can continue to be influential.

I will come to a close by reflecting on the past  
eight years noting that we have successfully 
navigated the pandemic, created a harmonized 
safe sport approach, and scaled the Rowing for 
All program nationwide through the Community 
Sport for All Initiative (CSAI). Our ability to work 
together to move something forward was at the 

core of each of these successes. We need more of 
this as we move into the future to continue to grow 
a strong national sport organization.

Also, I would like to thank the Board members I 
have worked with over the past 10 years. There is 
always so much to do and never enough time, but 
we have been impactful in a positive way.

I also express my appreciation to the RCA staff and 
their dedication to our sport and our organization. 
Connecting members to our staff over the years 
has been a point of pride for me, as their questions 
and concerns are well received and addressed.

I will continue to fully participate, where needed, 
in growing rowing across Canada to ensure a solid 
and bright future for our organization. 

See you on the water,

CAROL PURCER 
(Past) President

FROM THE FORMER PRESIDENT
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FROM THE CURRENT PRESIDENT
It is an honour to address you for the first time  
as the President of Rowing Canada Aviron. I 
would like to acknowledge and thank former 
President Carol Purcer for her commitment to 
our sport - not only in Canada, but also in the 
international arena. 

I am grateful for the opportunity to contribute  
to an organization with such a proud history,  
a vibrant community, and a deep commitment  
to excellence at every level of our sport. I have  
been involved in rowing as an athlete, coach,  
and volunteer and continue to witness first-
hand the breadth and depth of Canada’s rowing 
community. From small-town clubs to national 
training centres, from novice rowers to world 
champions, our shared passion for the sport 
connects us. That sense of connection — of 
belonging to something larger than ourselves 
 — will support us in the years ahead.

Our priorities are clear: to strengthen the 
relationships between member clubs, the  
Board, and RCA leadership; to support 
sustainable growth and financial health  
across our ecosystem; and to create an 

environment where every athlete, coach, and 
volunteer can thrive. Rowing Canada Aviron is 
at its best when we work collaboratively — when 
decisions are transparent, communication is 
frequent and clear, and stakeholders understand 
and support the vision and strategy.

Performance is an important objective in our 
sport - performance inspires young athletes, 
creates awareness and attracts newcomers, and, 
at the high performance level, determines our 
government funding.  Performance is not only 
an objective, it is also an outcome. Competitive 
success at every level of our sport is a result 
of committed athletes, strong and supportive 
programs, and excellent coaches. We have 
important and urgent work to do here.

The foundation of Canadian rowing has always 
been our clubs. That includes our universities. 
Every national and international champion begins 
their journey in a local boathouse. When our clubs 
are strong, our entire system is strong. Supporting 
our clubs is essential to the continued growth and 
success of our sport. 

Excellence on the water relies on excellence 
in leadership and governance. The board 
will promote a culture of trust, respect, and 
accountability, and we will provide our full 
support to the CEO and team as they advance 
our collective vision. Together, we will focus on 
building the pathways that enable athletes to 
develop and succeed, while ensuring that rowing 
in Canada remains safe, inclusive, and accessible.

Rowing in Canada has a proud legacy of world-
class performance. Our future will be supported 
by collaboration and renewal. Our success — in 
participation, in community, and in competition — 
will depend on working together. I look forward 
to engaging with you as we continue to build a 
strong, connected, and united rowing community 
that reflects the best of who we are.

TRACEY BLACK  
(Current) President
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FROM THE CEO
To our Canadian Rowing Community,

I’ve had the pleasure of meeting and engaging 
with a number of you over the last several months 
and look forward to connecting, or reconnecting, 
with many more in the months ahead. Given the 
timing of my start, I’d like to spend my time on 
more of a “State of the Union” and look ahead, 
rather than a recap of a year gone by. 

As many of you will know, Sport in Canada is, 
as it always seems to be, at a pivotal moment. 
Funding has not changed across the system in 
twenty years, meaning NSO’s are working with 
purchasing power that is roughly 50% of what it 
was. The system we are expected to deliver has 
only gotten more complicated during that time; 
with greater and greater unfunded mandates; 
anti-doping, safe sport, governance and coach 
education systems are all, properly, much more 
involved than they were. Clubs and PSO’s are 
feeling the same pressures across the country.

Add to that the particulars of our sport in this 
time. I think it is no secret that our community  
has not been as cohesive these last few years 
as we might like. At a time when unification and 
shared purpose might have served as a bulwark 

against these challenges we, with principled 
intentions from all, allowed ourselves to take  
a different path.

And yet, what I have been struck by as I have  
had the opportunity to visit your clubs and 
regattas; your boardrooms and Zoom calls; and 
more coffee discussions than I’m sure are healthy, 
is a deeply, unwaveringly passionate group of 
rowers. One of the bits of lore that was passed 
down at the Winnipeg Rowing Club came from 
the Riley family; great founders, builders and 
skilled oarsmen in their own right. The line goes, 
“there is more to life than rowing….but not much”. 
And I have been struck again and again by how 
true that seems to be in our community. I can’t 
help but think about what we might do when we 
settle on a common purpose.

So, what does that mean for all of us as we look 
forward? As we move towards the delivery of  
RCA’s next strategic plan, I hope you will find 
common cause with its pillars, and each of you  
can see yourselves reflected in it. It will require  
a big ask of our community; but we hope it will  
deliver big impact; the kind of change that will 
resonate not just for a quadrennial, but for a 
generation of Canadian rowers of all levels.

I’d also like to reiterate my own commitment to 
the community and where I will be spending my 
time and effort. The four areas of focus for me 
will be, first, supporting our community cohesion; 
learning from you what is important and where we 
share common ground to move forward. Second, 
working with the High Performance team to drive 
performance behaviours and resources to the 
national team. Third, thoughtfully and thoroughly 
navigate the NTC project to completion; making 
an honest evaluation of where we stand at every 
moment of the project, and the costs and benefits 
to push towards the conclusion. Finally, and this 
is certainly not unique to RCA, I am committed to 
building out not just the structures that support 
fiscal sustainability, but secure the financial 
resources to put those structures to  
maximum effect.

I’d like to finish with a couple of “thank you’s”. 
First, to many of you. You have repeatedly opened 
the doors of your clubs, shared your thoughts 
and wishes for rowing in this country and made 
me feel very welcome in the role. It has been at 
times overwhelming but made so much easier 
with your support and engagement. I am humbled 
by the opportunity to serve this community, and I 
hope very much that our organization lives up to 

your aspirations for us and that you continue to 
put your hands up to serve and to counsel as we 
move forward.

Finally, a word to, and about, my colleagues at 
Rowing Canada, some of whom I have known 
since my very first stroke. It has been a deep 
privilege to work with you these last several 
months; to learn about what you do and your 
deep care for it. I can share with you all that  
there are people here who are among the very 
best at what they do in sport in Canada. In a 
system absolutely straining for relief, they are 
striving greatly to serve you and move the sport 
forward. In particular, I’d like to single out Jen 
Fitzpatrick who has been a steady, knowledgeable 
hand as I have careened about trying to get 
up to speed. I cannot thank her enough for her 
guidance these last few months on what seems 
like a daily basis. We are more fortunate than we 
may know that she has dedicated herself to our 
sport, and I want her to know how important she 
is to our continued success.

Yours in rowing, 
JEFF POWELL 
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Fall 2025

The audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, were presented  
to the Membership at the Annual Meeting of Members on September 18, 2025.

The following is a summary of the key points previously reported.

RCA received an unqualified, or “clean” 
audit report. The auditor confirmed that the 
statements fairly represented our financial 
position in all material respects. It was also 
confirmed in the presentation that our 
internal controls and changes made in our 
reporting of the NTC Development Project 
were a positive step.

It is noted that there are significant 
variances in the comparative figures for 
both Accounts Receivable and Accounts 
Payable year over year. The 2025 figures 
reflect “normalized” levels for the 
organization. As previously reported, the 
2024 figures in both lines were abnormally 
high due to cash flows related to the 2024 
World Championships held in St. Catharines 
in August 2024.

As described in Note 7 to the statements as 
part of the approach to accounting for and 
reporting on the NTC Development Project, 
RCA has changed the approach to Deferred 
Capital Contributions to more accurately 
reflect the timing of using the contributions 
for their directed use.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, RCA 
generated a total net surplus of $226,523. 
The previous year (restated) RCA incurred 
a net loss of $479,730. The change to 
fund accounting for the NTC Development 
Project, the restatement of previous years’ 
figures and the corresponding adjustments 
all played a significant role in the generation  
of the 2025 surplus.

As described in Note 14, there was a 
substantial decrease in domestic “financial” 
activity as RCA did not receive Community 
Sport for All Initiative funding in fiscal 2025, 
whereas RCA received approximately $1.3 
million the previous year.

The presentation of the Statement of 
Financial Position was changed in fiscal 
24/25 to reflect the approach to the 
accounting of the NTC Development 
Project. RCA has moved to “fund 
accounting” for this project. This approach 
is in line with Accounting Standards for 
Not-for Profit Organizations (ASPNO) and 
provides better clarity to the membership 
and transparency of the financial 
management of the project.

To properly present accurate  
comparatives, the fiscal 2024 figures  
were restated accordingly and explained  
in detail in Note 12 to the statements.

operating surplus of $11,300 is estimated for the 
2026 fiscal year which is approximately $33,000 
better than originally budgeted. 

The NTC development fund reports a deficit of 
$3,999 for the six months ended September 30.  
Projections for the NTC development fund for fiscal 
2026 year end are dependent upon restrictions 
received on incoming funds which affect the timing 
for recognition in income.  As such a projection is 
not provided.

The largest variance to budget to date is a reduction 
in Sport Canada community sport for all funding 
($420K) with the corresponding decrease in the 
related domestic development expenses. 

In addition, with spring funding delays due to the 
prorogue of parliament, fiscal pressures required 
reduced camp and event registrations and the 
associated decrease in expenses. The organization 
was able to realize a net savings which positively 
impacted the budget vs projection.   

Overall participant registration data for the six 
month year to date indicates a modest increase 
in registration over fiscal 2025 despite general 
economic and funding challenges.

DEREK VENTNOR

As indicated in the report to the 2025 Semi-Annual 
Meeting, we have moved forward with continuing 
to improve our processes and reporting formats. 
The “fund accounting “ approach to the NTC 
Development Project is having the anticipated 
impact and we will continue with this approach  
until the project is fully complete. 

Interim Unaudited Financial Statements  
to September 30, 2025

The unaudited interim financial statements for 
the six months ending September 30 report 
an operating surplus of $1,085,600 which is 
comparable to prior year to date.  A projected 

FROM THE TREASURER
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World Rowing Cup 	 VARESE, ITALY Henley Royal Regatta  	 HENLEY-ON-THAMES, ENGLAND

World Rowing Cup  	 LUCERNE, SWITZERLAND 

Holland Beker   	 BOSBAAN, AMSTERDAM 

WOMEN’S COXLESS FOUR (W4-)
• 8TH OVERALL 

Cassidy Deane
Kingston Rowing Club (Whistler, British Columbia)

Alexis Cronk
University of Toronto (London, Ontario)

Brenna Randall
Regina Rowing Club (Regina, Saskatchewan)

Shaye de Paiva
Calgary Rowing Club (Calgary, Alberta)

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULL (W1X)
• 4TH OVERALL 

Katie Clark
False Creek Rowing Club / UBC (Cranbrook, British Columbia)

THE STEWARDS’ CHALLENGE  
CUP FINALISTS

 MEN’S COXLESS FOUR (M4-) 

Axel Ewashko
University of British Columbia / Brentwood College (Fort McMurray, 
Alberta)

Joel Cullen
University of British Columbia / University of Washington (Chilliwack, 
British Columbia) 

Steven Rosts
Ridley Graduate Boat Club (Jordan, Ontario)

Ryan Clegg
University of Western Ontario (Newmarket, Ontario)

THE VISITORS’ CHALLENGE CUP  
SEMIFINALISTS

MEN’S COXLESS FOUR (M4-) 
University of British Columbia and University  
of Western Ontario, Canada 

THE DOUBLE SCULLS CHALLENGE CUP
 SEMIFINALISTS

Trevor Jones
Peterborough Rowing Club (Lakefield, Ontario)

Terek Been
Montreal Rowing Club (Montreal, Quebec)

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS (M2X) 

Trevor Jones
Peterborough Rowing Club (Lakefield, Ontario)

Terek Been
Montreal Rowing Club (Montreal, Quebec)

THE PRINCESS ROYAL CHALLENGE CUP 
QUARTERFINALIST

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS (W1X) 
Shannon Nicole Kennedy
Shawnigan Lake School 

THE WARGRAVE CHALLENGE CUP 
WOMEN’S EIGHT (W8+)
 HEAT
Calgary Rowing Club 

THE WYFOLD CHALLENGE CUP 
MEN’S COXLESS FOUR (M4-) 
HEAT  
 Calgary Rowing Club

WOMEN’S COXLESS FOUR (W4-)
• 8TH OVERALL 

Cassidy Deane
Kingston Rowing Club (Whistler, British Columbia)

Alexis Cronk
University of Toronto (London, Ontario)

Brenna Randall
Regina Rowing Club (Regina, Saskatchewan)

Shaye de Paiva
Calgary Rowing Club (Calgary, Alberta)

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULL (W1X)
• 4TH OVERALL 

Katie Clark
False Creek Rowing Club / UBC (Cranbrook, British Columbia)

MEN’S COXLESS FOUR (M4-)

• 1ST OVERALL DAY 1 & 1ST OVERALL DAY 2 

Axel Ewashko
University of British Columbia / Brentwood College  
(Fort McMurray, Alberta)

Joel Cullen
University of British Columbia / University of Washington (Chilliwack, 
British Columbia) 

Steven Rosts
Ridley Graduate Boat Club (Jordan, Ontario)

Ryan Clegg
University of Western Ontario (Newmarket, Ontario)

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS (M2X)

• 2ND OVERALL DAY 1 & 2ND OVERALL DAY 2 

Trevor Jones
Peterborough Rowing Club (Lakefield, Ontario)

Terek Been
Montreal Rowing Club (Montreal, Quebec) 

MEN’S COXLESS FOUR (M4–) WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULL (W1X)
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International Rowing Challenge	 ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN

MEN’S COXED FOUR
• (M4+) - 5TH 

William Babineau
EL Crossley/Niagara Rowing School (Ontario)

Jack Ciocca 
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario) 

William Jacques
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia)

Willam DeVries
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia)

Bianca Batoni
St. Michael’s University School (British Columbia)

MEN’S COXED FOUR
• (M4+) - 8TH 

Henrik Neuspiel
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

Myles Quintyn
Niagara Falls Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Jack Coulson
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Maxim Froeschl
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

Sabrina Seville
Branksome Hall Rowing (Ontario)

MEN’S QUADRUPLE SCULLS

• (M4X) - 1ST 

Myles Quintyn
Niagara Falls Rowing Club (Ontario)

Henrik Neuspiel
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

Jack Coulson
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

Maxim Froeschl
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

MEN’S QUADRUPLE SCULLS
• (M4X) - 11TH 

Jack Ciocca
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

William Jacques
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia)

Willem DeVries
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia) 

William Babineau
EL Crossley/Niagara Rowing School (Ontario)

MEN’S PAIR
• (M2-) - 5TH 

Maxim Froeschl
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

Jack Coulson
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

MEN’S PAIR
• (M2-) - 8TH 

William Jacques
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia)

Willem DeVries
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia)

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS

• (M2X) - 3RD 

Myles Quintyn
Niagara Falls Rowing Club (Ontario)

Henrik Neuspiel
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS
• (M2X) - 6TH

William Babineau
EL Crossley/Niagara Rowing School (Ontario)

Jack Ciocca
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

WOMEN’S COXED FOUR
• (W4+) - 6TH 

Heidi Wall
Saskatoon Rowing Club (Saskatoon) 

Karina Biktimirova
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

Kennedy Bartel
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Isabella Essig
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Sabrina Seville
Branksome Hall Rowing (Ontario) 

WOMEN’S COXED FOUR
• (W4+) - 10TH 

Samaya Khosla
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Kayla Pearce
Club d’aviron de Montréal (Québec) 

Heather Clarke
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia)

Rachel Dirks
Havergal College/Hanlan Boat Club (Ontario) 

Bianca Batoni
St. Michael’s University School (British Columbia)

WOMEN’S QUADRUPLE SCULLS

• (W4X) - 1ST 

Heidi Wall
Saskatoon Rowing Club (Saskatoon)

Karina Biktimirova
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

Kennedy Bartel
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

Isabella Essig
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

WOMEN’S QUADRUPLE SCULLS
• (W4X) - 10TH 

Heather Clarke
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia)

Samaya Khosla
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Rachel Dirks
Havergal College/Hanlan Boat Club (Ontario)

Kayla Pearce
Club d’aviron de Montréal (Québec)

WOMEN’S PAIR
• (W2-)- 4TH 

Kayla Pearce – Club d’aviron de Montréal (Québec)

Rachel Dirks – Havergal College/Hanlan Boat Club (Ontario)

WOMEN’S PAIR
• (W2-)- 5TH 

Kennedy Bartel
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

Isabella Essig
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

MIXED TRAININGTRAININGMEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS (M2X)MEN’S QUADRUPLE SCULLS (M4X)
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MIXED EIGHT

• (MIX 8+) - 2ND 

Heidi Wall
Saskatoon Rowing Club (Saskatoon)

Karina Biktimirova
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

Jack Coulson
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

Myles Quintyn
Niagara Falls Rowing Club (Ontario)

Henrik Neuspiel
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario)

Maxim Froeschl
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Kennedy Bartel
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

Isabella Essig
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

Sabrina Seville
Branksome Hall Rowing (Ontario)

MIXED EIGHT
• (MIX 8+) - 12TH 

Samaya Khosla
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Kayla Pearce
Club d’aviron de Montréal (Québec)

Heather Clarke
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

Jack Ciocca
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario)

William Babineau
EL Crossley/Niagara Rowing School (Ontario)

William Jacques
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia)

Willem DeVries
Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia)

Rachel Dirks
Havergal College/Hanlan Boat Club (Ontario)

Bianca Batoni
St. Michael’s University School (British Columbia) 

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (W1X) - 5TH 

Heidi Wall
Saskatoon Rowing Club (Saskatoon)

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (W1X) - 7TH

Heather Clarke
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia)

WOMEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS
• (W2X) - 8TH 

Heather Clarke
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia)

Samaya Khosla
Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

WOMEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS
• (W2X) - 11TH 

Heidi Wall
Saskatoon Rowing Club (Saskatoon)

Karina Biktimirova
St. Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario) 

MEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (M1X) - 4TH 

Myles Quintyn
Niagara Falls Rowing Club (Ontario)

MEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (M1X) - 6TH 

William Babineau
EL Crossley/Niagara Rowing School (Ontario)

U23 World Rowing Championships 	 POZNAN, POLAND 

WOMEN’S PAIR
• (W2-) – 4TH 

Cait Whittard 
Maylie Valiquette 

MEN’S PAIR
• (M2-) – 11TH 

Connor Bohlmann 
Matteo Banducci 

WOMEN’S EIGHT

• (W8+) – 3RD 

Mira Calder
University of Washington/ 
Victoria City Rowing Club (British Columbia) 

Maylie Valiquette
Tennessee/Montreal Rowing Club (Quebec) 

Ellexi Fulton
Tennessee/Shawnigan Lake School (British Columbia) 

Annika Goodwyn
University of San Diego/ 
Burnaby Lake Rowing Club (British Columbia) 

Janette Peachey
Michigan/North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

Isobel Campbell
University of California, Berkeley/ 
Northfield Mount Hermon/Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Cait Whittard
University of Washington/ 
St.Catharines Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Gabriella Worobec
UBC/Edmonton Rowing Club (Alberta) 

Victoria Grieder
Rutgers University/Ottawa Rowing Club/ 
Ontario Area Rowing Society (Ontario) 

MEN’S EIGHT
• (M8+) – 12TH 

Payton Gauthier
Syracuse/Niagara Falls Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Connor Bohlmann
Princton University/Vancouver College Rowing (British Columbia) 

Adam Griesbach
University of Western Ontario/Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Daniel Mielecki
University of Victoria (British Columbia) 

Antony Klar
Cornell University 

Robert Walsh
UBC/Northstar Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

Adrian Breen
University of British Columbia (Ontario) 

Matteo Banducci
Cornell University/Vancouver Rowing Club (British Columbia) 

Oscar Wostenholme
UBC/Port Rowing (British Columbia) 

International Rowing Challenge	 ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN

MIXED EIGHT (MIX 8+) WOMEN’S EIGHT (W8+)
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FISU World University Games 	 RHINE-RUHR, GERMANY Junior Pan American Games	 ASCUNCIÓN, PARAGUAY 

U19 World Rowing Championships 	 TRAKAI, LITHUANIA 

WOMEN’S COXLESS FOUR
• (W4-) – 5TH 

Ceilidh Aho
University of Guelph (Newmarket, Ontario) 

Ceilidh MacDonald
Queen’s University (Barrie, Ontario) 

Madelyn Vandermeer
University of British Columbia (Rockwood, Ontario) 

Olivia Calbeck
Western University (Brantford, Ontario) 

WOMEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS
• (W2X) – 7TH 

Pepper Howe
University of Victoria (Saskatoon, Saskatchewan) 

Catherine Chénier-Gagnon
McGill University (Gatineau, Quebec) 

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (W1X)- 19TH 

Emily Munroe
Southern California University (Halifax, Nova Scotia) 

MEN’S COXLESS PAIR
• (M2-)- 5TH 

Connor Attridge
Cambridge (Coquitlam, British Columbia) 

Bob Bryden
Durham (Calgary, Alberta) 

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS
• (M2X) – 9TH 

Calvin Pally
Saskatchewan (Saskatoon, Saskatchewan) 

Keithan Woodhouse
Brock University (Fonthill, Ontario) 

MEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (M1X) – 13TH 

Charles-Etienne Tabet
Brock University (Boucherville, Quebec) 

MEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (M1X) – 5TH 

Oliver Baker
University of Western Ontario/ 
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS
• (M2X) – 4TH 

Oliver Baker
University of Western Ontario/ 
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

Kyland Mels-Williams
University of Western Ontario (Ontario) 

WOMEN’S COXLESS PAIR

• (W2-) – 3RD 

Riley Richardson
Virginia/Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Ella McKinley
Syracuse/Ottawa Rowing Club/ 
Ontario NextGen Performance Centre (Ontario) 

WOMEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS

• (W2X) – 3RD 

Tess Friar
Trent/Peterborough Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Jalyn Mowry
Brock/Peterborough Rowing Club (Ontario) 

WOMEN’S COXLESS FOUR

• (W4-) – 3RD 

Riley Richardson
Virginia/Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Ella McKinley
Syracuse/Ottawa Rowing Club/ 
Ontario NextGen Performance Centre (Ontario) 

Firinne Rolfe
Northeastern University/SMUS (British Columbia) 

Alessandra Tuttle
Brown/Shawnigan Lake Rowing Club (British Columbia) 

WOMEN’S EIGHT

• (W8+) – 2ND 

Riley Richardson
Virginia/Ottawa Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Ella McKinley
Syracuse/Ottawa Rowing Club/ 
Ontario NextGen Performance Centre (Ontario) 

Tess Friar
Trent/Peterborough Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Jalyn Mowry
Brock/Peterborough Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Firinne Rolfe
Northeastern University/SMUS (British Columbia) 

Alessandra Tuttle
Brown/Shawnigan Lake Rowing Club (British Columbia) 

Teija Patry
University of Western Ontario (Ontario) 

Maylie Valiquette
Tennessee / Montreal Rowing Club (Quebec) 

Annika Goodwyn
University of San Diego/  
Burnaby Lake Rowing Club  (British Columbia) 

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (W1X) – 12TH 

Lucy Hallett
Victoria City Rowing Club/ 
BC NextGen Performance Centre (British Columbia) 

WOMEN’S COXLESS PAIR

• (W2-) – 3RD 

Ciana Della Siega
Victoria City Rowing Club (British Columbia) 

Novella Rusman
Brentwood College School (British Columbia) 

WOMEN’S QUADRUPLE SCULLS
• (W4X) – 13TH 

Katherine Nazar
Winnipeg Rowing Club (Manitoba) 

Jade Postma
Ridley College (Ontario) 

Virginia Gates
Niagara Falls Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Makena Kubica
Peterborough Rowing Club (Ontario) 

MEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (M1X) – 18TH 

Jack Harris
Thunder Rowing (British Columbia) 

MEN’S COXLESS PAIR
• (M2-) – 11TH 

Ashton Kidd
Ridley College (Ontario) 

Lucas Riddle
EL Crossley/Niagara Rowing School (Ontario) 

MEN’S COXLESS FOUR
• (M4-) – 14TH 

William Hawkins
Brentwood College School (British Columbia) 

Griffith Coupland
Peterborough Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Bennett Maijer
St. Georges School (British Columbia) 

Patrick Boyle
Vancouver College (British Columbia) WOMEN’S COXLESS PAIR (W2–)

MEN’S COXLESS PAIR (M2–)

WOMEN’S EIGHT (W8+)
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Canada Cup 	 LONDON, ONTARIO 

MEN’S SINGLE SCULLS • (M1X) 

• �Riley Watson 
Row Ontario 

• �Noah Beaton 
Row Nova Scotia  

• �Calvin Pally 
Saskatchewan Rowing 

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS (W1X) 

• �Ashlyn Fehr 
Row Ontario 

• �Orla Bailey 
Alberta Rowing 

• �Meghan Harris 
Row Ontario 

MEN’S PAIR (M2-) 

• �Leo Biancaniello and Simon Whittaker 
Row Ontario 

• �Caillen Pickenhagen and Michael Gorefrom 
Row Ontario 

• �Robert Davis and Remo Cramer 
Alberta Rowing 

WOMEN’S PAIR (W2-) 

• �Hayley Buchanan and Meghan McCracken 
Alberta Rowing 

• �Cedar Wink and  
Ruth Theresa Shanahan McDonald 
Row Ontario 

• �Grace Sisett and Sierra Munroe 
Rowing BC 

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS (M2X) 

• �Calvin Pally and Adam Martens-Koop 
Saskatchewan Rowing

• �Kenneth Wilson and Noah Beaton 
Row Nova Scotia

• �Riley Watson and Hunter Guillemette 
Row Ontario

WOMEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS (W2X) 

• �Chloé Fortin and Clara McKernan 
Aviron Quebec 

• �Anna Washbrook and Tryne Mamen 
Alberta Rowing

• �Sophia Wolfenberg and Orla Bailey 
Alberta Rowing

MEN’S COXLESS FOUR (M4-) 

• �Caillen Pieckenhagen, Michael Gore,  
Charlie Samson, and Simon Whittaker 
Row Ontario

• �Vaughn Ellemers, Robert Davis, Ronan Boyle,  
and Thomas Boruta  
Alberta Rowing

• �Kieran Fitzpatrick, Eli Baughen, Oscar Humphries-
Joyeux, and William Low 
Rowing BC

WOMEN’S COXLESS FOUR (W4-) 

• �Cedar Wink, Ruth Theresa Shanahan McDonald, 
Meghan Harris, and Ashlyn Fehr 
Row Ontario

• �Grace Sisett, Sierra Munroe, Ester Majercin,  
and Sierra Goldberg-Goris 
BC Rowing

• �Anika Ewashko, Tryne Mamen, Hayley Buchanan, 
and Meghan McCracken 
Alberta Rowing

MIXED FOUR (MIX4X) 

• �Kenneth Wilson, Noah Beaton, Heather Clarke, 
and Lucy Walsh 
Row Nova Scotia 

• �Calvin Pally, Heidi Wall, Adam Martens-Koop,  
and Sofia Hyra 
Saskatchewan Rowing 

• �Chloé Fortin, Clara McKernan, Olivier Bellavance, 
and Robin Lanthier 
Aviron Quebec 

MIXED EIGHT (MIX8+)

• �Grace Sisett, Eli Baughen, Oleksii Lupan,  
Kieran Fitzpatrick, Eli Baughen, Sierra Munroe, 
Ester Majercin, William Low, and Joel Kronis 
Rowing BC

• �Ronan Boyle, Robert Davis,  
Thomas Boruta, Meghan McCracken,  
Vaughn Ellemers, Anika Ewashko,  
Tryne Mamen, and Hayley Buchanan 
Alberta Rowing 

• �Emerson Wehmeyer, Ella Gemin, Leo Biancaniello, 
Michael Gore, Charlie Samson, Simon Whittaker, 
Meghan Harris, Ashlyn Fehr, and Sophie Rorabeck 
Row Ontario

PROVINCIAL POINTS WINNER 
Row Ontario – 54 Points 

CANADA CUP TRAINING

CANADA CUP - ALL CLUBS

CANADA CUP TRAINING
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2025 World Rowing Championships	 SHANGHAI, CHINA

MEN’S DOUBLE SCULLS
• (M2X) - 19TH OVERALL 

Trevor Jones
Peterborough Rowing Club (Lakefield, Ontario)

Terek Been
Montreal Rowing Club (Montreal, Quebec)

MEN’S COXLESS FOUR
• (M4-) - 17TH OVERALL 

Axel Ewashko
University of British Columbia/ 
Brentwood College (Fort McMurray, Alberta)

Joel Cullen
University of British Columbia/ 
University of Washington (Chilliwack, British Columbia) 

Steven Rosts
Ridley Graduate Boat Club (Jordan, Ontario)

Ryan Clegg
University of Western Ontario (Newmarket, Ontario)

MEN’S EIGHT
• (M8+) - 9TH OVERALL 

Maijken Meindertsma
University of British Columbia (Yarrow, British Columbia) 

Samuel Stewart
University of Western Ontario (London, Ontario) 

Ryan Clegg
University of Western Ontario (Newmarket, Ontario)

Axel Ewashko
University of British Columbia/ 
Brentwood College (Fort McMurray, Alberta)

Trevor Jones
Peterborough Rowing Club (Lakefield, Ontario)

Terek Been
Montreal Rowing Club (Montreal, Quebec)

Joel Cåullen
University of British Columbia/ 
University of Washington (Chilliwack, British Columbia)

Steven Rosts
Ridley Graduate Boat Club (Jordan, Ontario)

Laura Court
St. Catharines Rowing Club (St. Catharines, Ontario)

LIGHTWEIGHT WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (LW1X) -  7TH OVERALL 

Karissa Riley
University of Western Ontario/ 
Calgary Rowing Club (Calgary, Alberta) 

WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS
• (W1X) - 7TH OVERALL 

Katie Clark
University of British Columbia (Cranbrook, British Columbia) 

WOMEN’S FOUR
• (W4-) - 8TH OVERALL 

Shaye de Paiva
Calgary Rowing Club (Calgary, Alberta)

Alexis Cronk
University of Toronto (London, Ontario)

Sally Jones
University of British Columbia / Victoria City Rowing Club (Victoria, 
British Columbia)

Brenna Randall
Regina Rowing Club (Regina, Saskatchewan)

WOMEN’S QUADRUPLE SCULLS
• (W4X) - 6TH OVERALL 

Shaye de Paiva
Calgary Rowing Club (Calgary, Alberta)

Cassidy Deane
Kingston Rowing Club (Whistler, British Columbia)

Kristen Siermachesky
Brockville Rowing Club (New Liskeard, Ontario)

Alizée Brien
Université de Montréal (Sainte-Agathe, Québec)

WOMEN’S EIGHT (W8+)

• 7TH OVERALL 

Cassidy Deane
Kingston Rowing Club (Whistler, British Columbia)

Alexis Cronk
University of Toronto (London, Ontario)

Parker Illingworth
University of British Columbia (Seattle, Washington) 

Kristen Siermachesky
Brockville Rowing Club (New Liskeard, Ontario) 

Shaye de Paiva
Calgary Rowing Club (Calgary, Alberta)

Alizée Brien
Université de Montréal (Sainte-Agathe, Québec)

Sally Jones
University of British Columbia/ 
Victoria City Rowing Club (Victoria, British Columbia) 

Brenna Randall
Regina Rowing Club (Regina, Saskatchewan)

Kristen Kit
University of British Columbia/  
St. Catharines Rowing Club (St. Catharines, Ontario)

PARA PR3 MIXED COXED FOUR
• (PRMIX4+) - 8TH OVERALL 

Abbygayle Durliat
St. Catharines Rowing Club (St. Catharines, ON) 

Stu Chase
Vancouver Rowing Club (Kamloops, British Columbia) 

Jay Berner
Calgary Rowing Club (Lethbridge, Alberta) 

Marie Danielle Main
Vancouver Rowing Club (Toronto, ON/Vancouver, BC)

Teija Patry
University of Western Ontario (Kingston, ON) 

WORLD’S TEAM  MEN’S COXLESS FOUR (M4–)

PARA PR3 MIXED COXED FOUR (PRMIX4+)

LIGHTWEIGHT WOMEN’S SINGLE SCULLS(LW1X)
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The Canadian University Rowing Association (CURA), alongside McGill University Rowing, hosted the 2025 
Canadian University Rowing Championships (CURC) held in Quebec on November 1 and 2. Universities from 
across the country took part in this year’s championships.

2025 Canadian University  
Rowing Championships BASSIN OLYMPIQUE, MONTREAL, QC 

MEN’S NATIONAL  
UNIVERSITY CHAMPIONS

University of British Columbia • 112 points • 

Brock University • 100 points • 

University of Victoria • 89 points • 

WOMEN’S NATIONAL  
UNIVERSITY CHAMPIONS

University of  Queens • 119 points •
University of Western • 100 points •
University of Victoria • 82 points •

2025 World Rowing Beach Sprint Finals 	 ANTALYA, TURKEY  

BOAT HANDLERS 
Caitlin Pauls
Ridley Graduate Boat Club (Ontario) 

Dean Prior 
Ontario

MEN’S SOLO
• (CM1X) - TIMETRIALS 

Raphael Kaiser
Montreal Rowing Club/ 
Aviron Knowlton Rowing (Quebec)

WOMEN’S SOLO
• (CW1X) - KNOCKOUT ROUNDS (TOP 16)

Sarah Pidgen
Don Rowing Club (Ontario) 

MIXED DOUBLE
• �(CMIX2X) - KNOCKOUT ROUNDS (TOP 16) 

7TH IN TIMETRIAL 

Aubrey Oldham
Leander Boat Club/  
McMasters University RC (Ontario) 

Carling Zeeman
Sudbury Rowing Club (British Columbia) 

JUNIOR WOMEN’S SOLO
• (CJW1X) - KNOCKOUT ROUNDS (TOP 16)

Autumn Prior
Orillia Rowing Club (Ontario)  

JUNIOR MEN’S SOLO
• (CJM1X) - TIMETRIALS 

Oliver Brennan
Kingston Rowing Club (Ontario) 

JUNIOR MIXED DOUBLES
• (CJMIX2X) - TIMETRIALS 

Autumn Prior
Orillia Rowing Club (Ontario)

Oliver Brennan
Kingston Rowing Club (Ontario)

Commonwealth Rowing Association  
Beach Sprints Championships

BOAT HANDLERS 
Caitlin Pauls
Ridley Graduate Boat Club (Ontario) 

Dean Prior
Ontario 

MEN’S SOLO

• (CM1X) - QUARTERFINAL 2ND PLACE 

Raphael Kaiser 
Montreal Rowing Club/Aviron Knowlton Rowing (Quebec)

WOMEN’S SOLO

• (CW1X) - QUARTERFINAL 2ND PLACE 

Lucy MacLeod
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

MIXED DOUBLE
• (CMIX2X) - 4TH OVERALL 

Aubrey Oldham
Leander Boat Club/McMaster University RC (Ontario) 

Lucy MacLeod
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

U21 MEN’S SOLO
• (CU21M1X) - KNOCKOUT ROUNDS (TOP 8) 

Dennis Ovdiyenko
Queen’s University (Ontario)

U21 WOMEN’S SOLO

• (CU21W1X) - 2ND PLACE OVERALL

Grace Comes
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia) 

U21 MIXED 2X

• (CU21MIX2X) - 3RD PLACE OVERALL

Dennis Ovdiyenko
Queen’s University (Ontario)

Grace Comes
North Star Rowing Club (Nova Scotia)

JR WOMEN’S SOLO

• (CJW1X) - 2ND PLACE OVERALL

Autumn Prior
Orillia Rowing Club (Ontario)  

JUNIOR MEN’S SOLO

• (CJM1X) - 1ST PLACE OVERALL

Oliver Brennan
Kingston Rowing Club (Ontario) 

JUNIOR MIXED DOUBLES

• (CJMIX2X) - 1ST PLACE OVERALL 

Autumn Prior
Orillia Rowing Club (Ontario) 

Oliver Brennan
Kingston Rowing Club (Ontario) 

BRIDGETOWN, BARBADOS

JUNIOR MIXED DOUBLES (CJMIX2X) COMMONWEALTH TEAM PHOTOJUNIOR MIXED DOUBLES (CJMIX2X)
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COMMITTEE (NTAAC) REPORT
In 2025, several initiatives on the alumni side 
supported health and wellness while also 
developing community and enhancing the 
experience for current athletes.

March saw a Canadian alumni organized group 
of international athletes at the Heineken Regatta 
in Amsterdam, where the team covered Olympic 
quadrennials from Montreal (1976) through Paris 
(2024). The boat consisted of Canadian, Dutch, 
French, and Norwegian Olympic medallists. In 
addition, the Canadian team members were  
able to sponsor Laura Court to cox and take  
the crew down the course while strategizing  
with Paris Olympic gold medal coach Freek 
Robbers in stroke!

April saw a second race in San Diego with a  
1st place result in the Men’s 60-plus 8+. Once 
again, there were Canadian Alumni from Olympic,  
Pan-American, and World Championship teams 
covering 1976-1996, with Jack Pankratz from  
the 2023 U23 program taking the boat down  
the course.

July, August, and September had multiple  
events on both the racing and community side. 
Jen Walinga returned to the Banyoles, Spain, 

course for the 1992 Olympics with winning crews 
for the World Masters Championship. At the same 
time, over on the community side, Phil Monckton 
engaged with Michael Carmichael, Agnico Eagle, 
and the Canadian Rowing Foundation to ensure 
Paris Olympians and Paralympians received 
rings in recognition of their commitment and 
contributions.

Finally, in the fall, there were two events. 
First, Julien Bahain, Fraser Berkhout, Christian 
Dabrowski, Ben DeWit and Mark Laidlaw entered 
a master’s four in the open age club event at the 
Head of the Charles and took home a bronze 
medal. A little later in the fall, there was fabulous 
Alumni representation at the Hanlan 50th 
Anniversary celebration in Toronto. 

Congratulations and appreciation all around for 
the 2025 Alumni effort, and if you haven’t had the 
chance to take part, please jump in for 2026.

DON TELFER, CHAIR & MICHAEL FORGERON
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ROWERS ACROSS CANADA

CLUB DATA 150 MEMBER ORGANIZATIONS*

12,758 TOTAL*

FEMALE • 7481 MALE • 5096 NON-BINARY • 57 PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 124

0 ROWERS • 24 1-100 ROWERS • 81 101-500 ROWERS • 42 +501 ROWERS • 3

ROWING BRITISH COLUMBIA 29.80%
FEMALE • 2217 MALE • 1830 NON-BINARY • 19 PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 40 4106 TOTAL

1

ALBERTA ROWING ASSOCIATION 7.29%
FEMALE • 643 MALE • 351 NON-BINARY • 6 PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 4 1004 TOTAL

2

SASKATCHEWAN ROWING ASSOCIATION 2.48%
FEMALE • 201 MALE • 127 NON-BINARY • 5 PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 9 342 TOTAL

3

MANITOBA ROWING ASSOCIATION 1.71%
FEMALE • 165 MALE • 69 NON-BINARY • – PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 1 235 TOTAL

4

ROW ONTARIO 43.35%
FEMALE • 3643 MALE • 2265 NON-BINARY • 13 PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 52 5973 TOTAL

5

ASSOCIATION QUÉBÉCOISE D'AVIRON 7.64%
FEMALE • 548 MALE • 480 NON-BINARY • 10 PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 15 1053 TOTAL

6

ROWING NEW BRUNSWICK AVIRON 1.26%
FEMALE • 89 MALE • 82 NON-BINARY • – PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 2 173 TOTAL

7

ROWING PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND 0.97%
FEMALE • 94 MALE • 38 NON-BINARY • – PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 1 133 TOTAL

8

ROW NOVA SCOTIA 3.75%
FEMALE • 314 MALE • 193 NON-BINARY • 5 PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 4 516 TOTAL

9

ROWING NEWFOUNDLAND 1.76%
FEMALE • 176 MALE • 63 NON-BINARY • – PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE • 4 243 TOTAL

10

150 RCA Member Organizations in 2024-2025:
• 128 Rowing Clubs
• 10 Provincial Rowing Associations
• 12 Special Associations

New Member Organizations
of RCA in 2024-25:
Yorkton Rowing Club

*12,758 rowers registered for programs from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025

*Includes 22 member organizations (Associations) that do not register any participants

38.28% of our Clubs saw growth in participants when compared to the 2023-2024 fiscal year.

1
2

3
4

5 6
8

7

10

9

DATA SET 1 – Number of Registered Participants from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 by Provincial  
Rowing Association. Many individuals registered with more than one Provincial Rowing Association 
throughout this time period. Accordingly, the following organization numbers contain duplicate  
participants. (E.g. If an individual rowed in AB and BC, they are counted in both provincial breakdowns)
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ALBERTA ROWING
ASSOCIATION

643 351 6 4 TOTAL: 1004     2023/2024: 856     DIFFERENCE: +148

CALGARY ROWING CLUB

• 306	 • 189	 • 2	 • 2	 TOTAL: 499	 2023/2024: 462	 DIFFERENCE: +37 

CENTRAL ALBERTA ROWING CLUB

• 19	 • 8	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 27	 2023/2024: 21	 DIFFERENCE: +6 

EDMONTON ROWING CLUB

• 187	 • 89	 • 2	 • 2	 TOTAL: 280	 2023/2024: 211	 DIFFERENCE: +69 

LAKELAND ROWING CLUB

• 25	 • 9	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 35	 2023/2024: 32	 DIFFERENCE: +3 

LEDUC ROWING CLUB

• –	 • –	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: –	 2023/2024: 2	 DIFFERENCE: -2 

SOMBA K’E PADDLING CLUB

• 25	 • 7	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 33	 2023/2024: 21	 DIFFERENCE: +12 

UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA ROWING

• 33	 • 10	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 43	 2023/2024: 48	 DIFFERENCE: -5 

UNIVERSITY OF CALGARY ROWING CLUB

• 48	 • 39	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 87	 2023/2024: 59	 DIFFERENCE: +28  

ASSOCATION 
QUÉBÉCOISE D'AVIRON

548 480 10 15 TOTAL: 1053     2023/2024: 931     DIFFERENCE: +122

AVIRON KNOWLTON / KNOWLTON ROWING

• 45	 • 34	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 79	 2023/2024: 76	 DIFFERENCE: +3

AVIRON LACHINE (CLUB D’AVIRON LACHINE)

• 56	 • 68	 • 2	 • 1	 TOTAL: 127	 2023/2024: 131	 DIFFERENCE: -4 

CLUB D’AVIRON D’ALMA

• 19	 • 16	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 35	 2023/2024: 45	 DIFFERENCE: -10 

CLUB D’AVIRON DE BOUCHERVILLE

• 70	 • 62	 • 1	 • 1	 TOTAL: 134	 2023/2024: 130	 DIFFERENCE: +4 

CLUB D’AVIRON DE L’UNIVERSITÉ DE MONTRÉAL

• 20	 • 18	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 38	 2023/2024: 33	 DIFFERENCE: +5 

CLUB D’AVIRON DE LA CAPITALE

• 19	 • 13	 • –	 • 8	 TOTAL: 40	 2023/2024: 20	 DIFFERENCE: +20 

CLUB D’AVIRON DE LAVAL

• 52	 • 39	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 92	 2023/2024: 77	 DIFFERENCE: +15

DATA SET 2 – RCA Member Organizations (clubs) from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025.   Some individuals 
registered with more than one organization during this time period. Accordingly, the following organization 
numbers may contain duplicate participants.  (E.g. If an individual rowed at Argonaut Rowing Club and 
Antigonish Rowing Club they are counted in both club breakdowns).

• FEMALE   • MALE   • NON-BINARY   • PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE
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ROW NOVA SCOTIA

314 193 5 4 TOTAL: 516     2023/2024: 544     DIFFERENCE: -28

ANTIGONISH ROWING CLUB

• 26	 • 10	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 37	 2023/2024: 41	 DIFFERENCE: -4 

HALIFAX ROWING CLUB

• 98	 • 66	 • 2	 • –	 TOTAL: 166	 2023/2024: 183	 DIFFERENCE: -17

LYC ROWING

• 22	 • 12	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 34	 2023/2024: 31	 DIFFERENCE: +3

MIC MAC AMATEUR AQUATIC CLUB

• 87	 • 53	 • 1	 • 3	 TOTAL: 144	 2023/2024: 154	 DIFFERENCE: -10 

NORTH STAR ROWING CLUB

• 81	 • 52	 • 1	 • 1	 TOTAL: 135	 2023/2024: 135	 DIFFERENCE: 0 

ROW ONTARIO

3643 2265 13 52 TOTAL: 5973    2023/2024: 5782    DIFFERENCE: +191

ARGONAUT ROWING CLUB

• 365	 • 261	 • 4	 • 4	 TOTAL: 634	 2023/2024: 587	 DIFFERENCE: +47 

BARRIE ROWING CLUB

• 61	 • 37	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 98	 2023/2024: 70	 DIFFERENCE: +28

CLUB D’AVIRON DE MONTRÉAL / MONTREAL ROWING CLUB

• 153	 • 113	 • 7	 • 4	 TOTAL: 277	 2023/2024: 208	 DIFFERENCE: +69 

CLUB D’AVIRON TERREBONNE-GPAT

• 54	 • 67	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 121	 2023/2024: 105	 DIFFERENCE: +16 

CLUB D’AVIRON WATERLOO

• 11	 • 9	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 20	 2023/2024: 15	 DIFFERENCE: +5 

CLUB NAUTIQUE DE SHERBROOKE INC.

• 14	 • 9	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 23	 2023/2024: 27	 DIFFERENCE: -4 

MCGILL UNIVERSITY ROWING

• 35	 • 32	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 67	 2023/2024: 64	 DIFFERENCE: +3 

MANITOBA ROWING 
ASSOCIATION

165 69 1 – TOTAL: 235     2023/2024: 211     DIFFERENCE: +24

KENORA ROWING CLUB

• 44	 • 8	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 52	 2023/2024: 25	 DIFFERENCE: +27 

PINAWA SAILING AND ROWING CLUB

• 15	 • 20	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 35	 2023/2024: 36	 DIFFERENCE: -1

PRAIRIE FIRE ROWING CLUB INC.

• 5	 • 1	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 6	 2023/2024: 6	 DIFFERENCE: 0

WINNIPEG ROWING CLUB

• 101	 • 40	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 142	 2023/2024: 144	 DIFFERENCE: -2 
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HALDIMAND GRAND RIVER ROWING CLUB

• 31	 • 2	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 33	 2023/2024: 32	 DIFFERENCE: +1 

HANLAN BOAT CLUB

• 173	 • 108	 • 1	 • 26	 TOTAL: 308	 2023/2024: 276	 DIFFERENCE: +32 

HATCHETS TRAINING CENTRE

• 2	 • 1	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 3	 2023/2024: 0	 DIFFERENCE: +3 

HAVERGAL ROWING CLUB

• 65	 • –	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 65	 2023/2024: 73	 DIFFERENCE: -8 

ISLAND LAKE ROWING CLUB

• 66	 • 28	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 96	 2023/2024: 114	 DIFFERENCE: -18 

KINGSTON ROWING CLUB

• 74	 • 37	 • 1	 • 2	 TOTAL: 114	 2023/2024: 175	 DIFFERENCE: -61 

LASALLE ROWING CLUB

• 84	 • 36	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 120	 2023/2024: 98	 DIFFERENCE: +22 

LEANDER BOAT CLUB

• 109	 • 100	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 210	 2023/2024: 227	 DIFFERENCE: -17 

LONDON WESTERN ROWING CLUB

• 62	 • 46	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 110	 2023/2024: 135	 DIFFERENCE: -25 

MUSKOKA ROWING CLUB

• 26	 • 9	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 35	 2023/2024: 37	 DIFFERENCE: -2 

NIAGARA FALLS ROWING CLUB

• 54	 • 25	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 79	 2023/2024: 79	 DIFFERENCE: 0

BRANKSOME HALL ROWING

• 45	 • –	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 45	 2023/2024: 43	 DIFFERENCE: +2 

BROCK ROWING CLUB

• 23	 • 35	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 58	 2023/2024: 98	 DIFFERENCE: -40 

BROCKVILLE ROWING CLUB

• 22	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 25	 2023/2024: 8	 DIFFERENCE: +17 

BURNSTOWN ROWING CLUB

• 17	 • 14	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 32	 2023/2024: 40	 DIFFERENCE: -8 

CAMBRIDGE ROWING CLUB

• 95	 • 69	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 164	 2023/2024: 154	 DIFFERENCE: +10 

COLLINGWOOD ROWING CLUB

• 23	 • 8	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 32	 2023/2024: 28	 DIFFERENCE: +4 

CORNWALL ROWING CLUB

• 9	 • 7	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 16	 2023/2024: 4	 DIFFERENCE: +12 

DON ROWING CLUB

• 158	 • 151	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 310	 2023/2024: 306	 DIFFERENCE: +4 

DURHAM ROWING CLUB

• 74	 • 39	 • 1	 • 1	 TOTAL: 115	 2023/2024: 94	 DIFFERENCE: +21 

GEORGIAN BAY ROWING CLUB

• 13	 • 20	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 33	 2023/2024: 43	 DIFFERENCE: -10 

GUELPH ROWING CLUB

• 151	 • 75	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 227	 2023/2024: 209	 DIFFERENCE: +18 
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RIDLEY COLLEGE ROWING CLUB

• 62	 • 39	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 102	 2023/2024: 58	 DIFFERENCE: +44 

RIDLEY GRADUATE BOAT CLUB

• 22	 • 16	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 38	 2023/2024: 35	 DIFFERENCE: +3 

ROYAL MILITARY COLLEGE

• 12	 • 21	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 33	 2023/2024: 42	 DIFFERENCE: -9 

SOUTH NIAGARA ROWING CLUB

• 136	 • 73	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 210	 2023/2024: 163	 DIFFERENCE: +47 

ST. CATHARINES ROWING CLUB

• 441	 • 278	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 721	 2023/2024: 748	 DIFFERENCE: -27 

ST. LAWRENCE ROWING CLUB

• 21	 • 6	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 27	 2023/2024: 26	 DIFFERENCE: +1 

SUDBURY ROWING CLUB

• 49	 • 27	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 77	 2023/2024: 68	 DIFFERENCE: +9 

THUNDER BAY ROWING CLUB

• 72	 • 25	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 97	 2023/2024: 68	 DIFFERENCE: +29 

TILLSONBURG ROWING CLUB

• 5	 • 1	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 6	 2023/2024: 6	 DIFFERENCE: 0 

TORONTO SCULLING CLUB

• 14	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 17	 2023/2024: 18	 DIFFERENCE: -1 

TRINITY COLLEGE SCHOOL

• 21	 • 8	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 29	 2023/2024: 29	 DIFFERENCE: 0

NIAGARA ROWING SCHOOL

• 1	 • 1	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 2	 2023/2024: 13	 DIFFERENCE: -11 

NIPISSING UNIVERSITY ROWING CLUB

• 11	 • 10	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 22	 2023/2024: 20	 DIFFERENCE: +2 

NOTRE DAME ROWING CLUB

• 94	 • 83	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 178	 2023/2024: 138	 DIFFERENCE: +40 

ONTARIO ADVENTURE ROWING (SPECIAL ASSOCIATION)

• 68	 • 24	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 93	 2023/2024: 101	 DIFFERENCE: -8 

ORILLIA ROWING CLUB

• 57	 • 36	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 93	 2023/2024: 83	 DIFFERENCE: +10 

OTTAWA NEW EDINBURGH CLUB

• 90	 • 31	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 122	 2023/2024: 55	 DIFFERENCE: +67 

OTTAWA ROWING CLUB

• 318	 • 194	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 514	 2023/2024: 527	 DIFFERENCE: -13 

OWEN SOUND ROWING CLUB

• 23	 • 5	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 29	 2023/2024: 26	 DIFFERENCE: +3 

PETERBOROUGH ROWING CLUB

• 138	 • 95	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 234	 2023/2024: 282	 DIFFERENCE: -48 

QUEEN’S UNIVERSITY ROWING

• 52	 • 37	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 90	 2023/2024: 43	 DIFFERENCE: +47 

QUINTE ROWING CLUB

• 33	 • 12	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 45	 2023/2024: 26	 DIFFERENCE: +19 
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DELTA TIDEWAY SCULLERS ASSOCIATION

• 1	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 4	 2023/2024: 4	 DIFFERENCE: 0 

FALSE CREEK ROWING CLUB

• 113	 • 84	 • 3	 • 4	 TOTAL: 204	 2023/2024: 240	 DIFFERENCE: -36 

FORT LANGLEY COMMUNITY ROWING CLUB

• 35	 • 26	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 61	 2023/2024: 66	 DIFFERENCE: -5 

FORT LANGLEY YOUTH ROWING SOCIETY

• 25	 • 26	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 53	 2023/2024: 47	 DIFFERENCE: +6 

FRASER VALLEY ROWING CLUB

• 13	 • 2	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 16	 2023/2024: 18	 DIFFERENCE: -2 

GORGE NARROWS ROWING CLUB

• 197	 • 75	 • 2	 • 3	 TOTAL: 277	 2023/2024: 259	 DIFFERENCE: +18 

GREATER VICTORIA YOUTH ROWING SOCIETY (GVYRS)

• 130	 • 145	 • 2	 • 4	 TOTAL: 281	 2023/2024: 381	 DIFFERENCE: -100 

INLET ROWING CLUB (PORT MOODY, B.C.)

• 77	 • 47	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 126	 2023/2024: 120	 DIFFERENCE: +6 

KAMLOOPS ROWING CLUB

• 10	 • 8	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 18	 2023/2024: 15	 DIFFERENCE: +3 

KELOWNA ROWING CLUB

• 38	 • 26	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 65	 2023/2024: 95	 DIFFERENCE: -30 

LAKE WINDERMERE ROWING CLUB

• 21	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 24	 2023/2024: 38	 DIFFERENCE: -14 

UNIVERSITY OF TORONTO

• 43	 • 37	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 81	 2023/2024: 92	 DIFFERENCE: -11 

UNIVERSITY OF WESTERN ONTARIO BOAT CLUB

• 46	 • 42	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 88	 2023/2024: 95	 DIFFERENCE: -7 

UPPER CANADA COLLEGE ROWING

• –	 • 48	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 49	 2023/2024: 76	 DIFFERENCE: -27 

WELLINGTON SCULLING CLUB

• 12	 • 2	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 14	 2023/2024: 14	 DIFFERENCE: 0

ROWING 
BRITISH COLUMBIA

2217 1830 19 40 TOTAL: 4106    2023/2024: 4099    DIFFERENCE: +7

BRENTWOOD COLLEGE SCHOOL

• 64	 • 89	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 154	 2023/2024: 158	 DIFFERENCE: -4 

BURNABY LAKE ROWING CLUB

• 134	 • 124	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 260	 2023/2024: 183	 DIFFERENCE: +77

CLAREMONT SPORTS INSTITUTE ROWING ACADEMY

• 20	 • 36	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 56	 2023/2024: 39	 DIFFERENCE: +17

DEEP COVE ROWING CLUB

• 97	 • 67	 • 1	 • 3	 TOTAL: 168	 2023/2024: 159	 DIFFERENCE: +9 

DELTA DEAS ROWING CLUB

• 78	 • 67	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 145	 2023/2024: 155	 DIFFERENCE: -10 

• FEMALE   • MALE   • NON-BINARY   • PREFER NOT TO DISCLOSE

•
  

2
0

2
5

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

•
  

R
O

W
IN

G
 C

A
N

A
D

A
 A

V
IR

O
N

38 39



ST. GEORGE’S SCHOOL

• –	 • 98	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 98	 2023/2024: 71	 DIFFERENCE: +27 

ST. MICHAELS UNIVERSITY SCHOOL

• 26	 • 33	 • –	 • 2	 TOTAL: 61	 2023/2024: 39	 DIFFERENCE: +22 

THUNDER ROWING CREW

• 11	 • 17	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 29	 2023/2024: 79	 DIFFERENCE: -50 

UNIVERSITY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA ROWING

• 28	 • 24	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 52	 2023/2024: 94	 DIFFERENCE: -42 

UNIVERSITY OF VICTORIA ROWING CLUB

• 66	 • 38	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 104	 2023/2024: 105	 DIFFERENCE: -1 

VANCOUVER COLLEGE ROWING

• 0	 • 49	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 49	 2023/2024: 0	 DIFFERENCE: +49 

VANCOUVER ROWING CLUB

• 247	 • 223	 • 4	 • 4	 TOTAL: 478	 2023/2024: 511	 DIFFERENCE: -33 

VERNON ROWING AND DRAGON BOAT CLUB

• 47	 • 30	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 77	 2023/2024: 84	 DIFFERENCE: -7 

VICTORIA CITY ROWING CLUB

• 242	 • 240	 • 4	 • 5	 TOTAL: 491	 2023/2024: 490	 DIFFERENCE: +1

LILLOOET ROWING CLUB

• –	 • –	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 0	 2023/2024: 0	 DIFFERENCE: 0 

MAPLE BAY ROWING CLUB

• 71	 • 49	 • 1	 • 4	 TOTAL: 125	 2023/2024: 128	 DIFFERENCE: -3 

NANAIMO ROWING CLUB

• 98	 • 46	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 145	 2023/2024: 114	 DIFFERENCE: +31 

NELSON ROWING CLUB

• 45	 • 17	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 62	 2023/2024: 107	 DIFFERENCE: -45 

NICOMEKL ROWING CLUB

• 45	 • 12	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 57	 2023/2024: 56	 DIFFERENCE: +1 

OARCA COASTAL ROWING

• 44	 • 10	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 54	 2023/2024: 34	 DIFFERENCE: +20 

ROCKIES ROWING CLUB

• 14	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 17	 2023/2024: 12	 DIFFERENCE: +5 

SALT SPRING ISLAND ROWING CLUB

• 63	 • 32	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 96	 2023/2024: 57	 DIFFERENCE: +39

SFU STUDENT ROWING SOCIETY

• 34	 • 28	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 62	 2023/2024: 0	 DIFFERENCE: +62 

SHAWNIGAN LAKE ROWING CLUB

• 66	 • 44	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 111	 2023/2024: 114	 DIFFERENCE: -3 

SHUSWAP ROWING AND PADDLING CLUB

• 17	 • 9	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 26	 2023/2024: 27	 DIFFERENCE: -1 
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ROWING PRINCE 
EDWARD ISLAND

94 38 0 1 TOTAL: 133    2023/2024: 120    DIFFERENCE: +13

ROWING PEI

• 94	 • 38	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 133	 2023/2024: 120	 DIFFERENCE: +13

SASKATCHEWAN 
ROWING ASSOCIATION

201 127 5 9 TOTAL: 342    2023/2024: 281    DIFFERENCE: +61

LLOYDMINSTER ROWING CLUB

• 12	 • 4	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 17	 2023/2024: 34	 DIFFERENCE: -17 

PRINCE ALBERT DRIFTERS ROWING CLUB

• 10	 • 3	 • 1	 • –	 TOTAL: 14	 2023/2024: 16	 DIFFERENCE: -2

REGINA ROWING CLUB

• 43	 • 25	 • 1	 • 3	 TOTAL: 72	 2023/2024: 86	 DIFFERENCE: -14

SASKATOON ROWING CLUB

• 131	 • 92	 • 3	 • 5	 TOTAL: 231	 2023/2024: 145	 DIFFERENCE: +86

YORKTON ROWING CLUB INC.

• 5	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 8	 2023/2024: 0	 DIFFERENCE: +8

ROWING NEW 
BRUNSWICK AVIRON

72 63 – 1 TOTAL: 136    2023/2024: 105    DIFFERENCE: +31

FOUR BRIDGES ROWING CLUB

• 5	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 8	 2023/2024: 4	 DIFFERENCE: +4 

FREDERICTON ROWING CLUB

• 17	 • 19	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 37	 2023/2024: 40	 DIFFERENCE: -3

KENNEBECASIS ROWING CLUB

• 59	 • 56	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 115	 2023/2024: 101	 DIFFERENCE: +14

TWO RIVERS ROWING CLUB

• 8	 • 4	 • –	 • 1	 TOTAL: 13	 2023/2024: 0	 DIFFERENCE: +13

ROWING 
NEWFOUNDLAND

176 63 – 4 TOTAL: 243    2023/2024: 247    DIFFERENCE: -4

HUMBER RIVER ROWING CLUB INC.

• 20	 • 3	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 23	 2023/2024: 16	 DIFFERENCE: +7 

LABRADOR WEST ROWING ASSOCIATION

• 62	 • 13	 • –	 • –	 TOTAL: 75	 2023/2024: 80	 DIFFERENCE: -5

ST. JOHN’S ROWING CLUB

• 94	 • 47	 • –	 • 4	 TOTAL: 145	 2023/2024: 151	 DIFFERENCE: -6
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TOTAL CANADA WIDE:

12,758

7481 FEMALE • 58.64%    5096 MALE • 39.94%    57 NON-BINARY • 0.45%    124 PREFER TO NOT DISCLOSE • 0.97%

PARA CATAGORIES

TOTAL TOTAL %

PR1 (previously AS) 7 4.43

PR2 (previously TA) 5 3.16

PR3 (previously LTA) 20 12.66

No Official Classification 64 40.51

Not Sure 57 36.08

Prefer not to disclose 5 3.16

Grand Total 158 100%
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COME TRY 
EVENTS  
DELIVERED  
IN 2024/25.

VOLUNTEERS

TOTAL  
PARTICIPANTS 
ACROSS EVENTS.

NEW TO ROWING 
INDIVIDUALS

This includes National 
Come Try events 
delivered by 28 
participating member 
organizations.

have started or have 
continued their role  
as an Umpire.

participated in National 
Come Try Rowing Day.

ACTIVE 
COACHES IN 
2024-2025.

COACHES BY AGE GROUP AND PROVINCE

Age Range Province

AB BC MB NB NL NS ON PE QC SK Total

15-19 18 11 29 6 10 7 81

20-29 8 94 3 1 11 152 1 8 10 288

30-39 7 41 1 3 6 73 7 1 139

40-49 3 26 1 3 1 55 3 10 102

50-59 1 36 1 6 4 87 1 2 4 142

60-69 2 31 1 3 5 82 5 8 1 138

70-79 2 16 1 22 1 42

80-89 2 2

Total 23 262 4 19 2 37 502 17 45 23 934

UMPIRES BY AGE GROUP AND PROVINCE 

Age Range Province

AB BC MB NS ON PE QC SK Total

<20 1 1

20-29 7 6 1 14

30-39 2 12 1 1 11 3 30

40-49 2 6 4 1 13 3 29

50-59 3 16 5 4 25 7 2 62

60-69 1 30 2 6 29 7 3 78

70-79 1 14 1 7 20 3 3 2 51

80-89 1 5 6

Total 9 87 13 19 109 3 23 8 271

Umpires Selected for FISA  
Juried During 2024-25  
Regatta Season:

Marie-Sophie Desaulniers
Junior Pan Am Games Qualification Regatta,
Asunción Paraguay, March 17 – 22 

Richard Koo
Junior Pan Am Games Qualification Regatta,
Asunción Paraguay, March 17 – 22

Mélanie Bryce
World Rowing Cup, 
Varese, Italy, June 13 – 15

Derek Ventnor
World Rowing U23 Championships,
Poznan, Poland, July 23 – 27

Andrew Smith
FISU World University Games, 
Duisburg, Germany, July 24 – 27

Kris Davis
Junior Pan Am Games Regatta,
Asunción, Paraguay, August 10 – 13

Audra Vair
Junior Pan Am Games Regatta,
Asunción, Paraguay, August 10 – 13

William Donegan
World Rowing Masters Regatta,
Banyoles, Spain, September 10 – 14

* �Please note there is some 
overlap between roles as 
volunteers progress  
through the pathway.

EVENTS

UMPIRES ASSISTANT 
UMPIRES

ASSOCIATE 
UMPIRES 

82 F • 46.59% 35 F • 75% 30 F • 58.82%94 M • 53.41% 11 M • 25% 21 M • 41.18%

498 FEMALE • 53.32%
428 MALE • 45.82%
2 NON-BINARY • 0.21%
6 PREFER TO NOT DISCLOSE • 0.64%
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2025-2026 ROWING CANADA  
AVIRON BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Tracey Black 
President (Effective September 18th, 2025)

Carol Purcer
President (Until September 18th, 2025) 

Derek Ventnor 
Provincial Director 

Treasurer (Until October 22nd, 2025)

Lindsay Bergen 
Athlete Director (Until September 18th, 2025)

Aaron Lattimer 
Athlete Director (Effective September 18th, 2025)

Mike Bryden 
Director 

Charles Minett 
Director 

Sander Grieve, K.C. 
Director at Large 

Jane Stamp 
Treasurer (Effective October 22nd, 2025)

Eric Sudman 
Secretary 

NATIONAL TEAM ALUMNI  
ASSOCIATION COMMITTEE 
Don Telfer, Chair 
Phil Graham 
Mike Forgeron 
Peter Cookson 
Susanne Wereley 
Krisa Guloien 
Lindsay Bergen 
(Until September 18, 2025)

Aaron Lattimer 
(Effective September 18, 2025

COMMITTEE ON DUES AND FEES 
Daphné Bisson (Quebec), Chair 
Judy Smith (British Columbia) 
Betsy Segal (British Columbia) 
Dave Boyd (Ontario) 
Russell Hart (Prairies Region) 
Daphne Dumont (Atlantic Region) 
 
Ex-Officio: Carol Purcer

RCA President & Jane Stamp, Treasurer 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Jane Stamp, Chair 
Derek Ventnor
Mike Bryden
Paul Fritz-Nemeth 

AWARDS COMMITTEE 
Lynda Dundas 
Suzanne Wilkinson 
George Gage 
John Oxley 
Louise Boily 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
COMMITTEE 
Carol Purcer, Chair  
Andrew Lamont  
Lindsay Bergen  
Derek Ventnor 

COACH EDUCATION  
AND DEVELOPMENT  
COMMITTEE (CEDC)  
Volker Nolte  
Howard Campbell  
Jill Würflinger  
Colleen Miller 

SAFETY AND  
EVENTS COMMITTEE 
Mike Bagshawe (Chair)  
Matteo Cendamo   
Lynda Dundas   
Tim Henderson  
Tom Blacquiere 
Michelle Boss 

UMPIRES COMMITTEE  
Judy Sutcliffe (Chair) 
Ge-an Rijniersce 
Julie-Ann Vincent 
Marie-Sophie Desaulniers 
Jeff Simpson 
Richard Koo

NOMINATING COMMITTEE  
Charles Minett, Chair 
Andrew Lamont 
Emily Jago 
Susan Wilkinson 

GOVERNANCE AND  
POLICY COMMITTEE 
Peter Klinkow
Paul Fritz-Nemeth
Kristen Henry
Susan Kitchen
Andrew Lamont
Grace Hardwicke-Brown
Sander A.J.R. Grieve, K.C.

2025 PROVINCIAL  
ADVISORY COUNCIL   
Scott Parfitt 
President, Rowing British Columbia 

Peter Walsh 
President, Alberta Rowing Association 

Peter Vilks 
President, Manitoba Rowing Association 

Peter Van Rooijen 
President, Row Ontario 

Paule Bernier 
President, Association Québécoise d’Aviron 

Kim Norris 
President, Rowing New Brunswick Aviron 

Laura Graham 
President, Row Nova Scotia 

Nancy Russell 
President, Rowing PEI 

Doreen Hamlyn 
President, Rowing Newfoundland 

Amanda Billesberger
Board Member, Saskatchewan Rowing Association 
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LONG SERVICE AWARD LIST
15 YEARS
Laurel Glanfield
Rowing B.C. 

Ge-An Rijniersce
Rowing B.C. 

Lisa Robertson
Rowing B.C. 

20 YEARS
Sean Moore
Kennebecasis Rowing Club

York Langerfeld
University of Victoria, Rowing B.C. 

Aalbert Van Schothorst
University of Victoria, Rowing B.C. 

25 YEARS
Simon Litherland
False Creek Rowing 

30 YEARS
Dimas Craveiro
Vancouver Rowing Club 

35 YEARS
Kim Norris
Kennebecasis Rowing Club

Lynda Dundas
Don Rowing Club

40 YEARS
Brian Fisher
St.Catharines Rowing Club 

45 YEARS
Ernst Peters
Don Rowing Club

50 YEARS
Dolores Young
Kennebecasis Rowing Club

Sandra Kirby
Winnipeg Rowing Club

55 YEARS
George Gage
Leander Boat Club

RETIRING FISA LEVEL UMPIRE 
Debbie Wood
Row Ontario 

COACH OF THE YEAR
Alex Marchuk
Calgary Rowing Club 

CLUB OUTSTANDING 
ACHIEVEMENT
Hanlan Boat Club

VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR
Bas Rijniersce
Rowing British Columbia 

LIFETIME ACHIEVEMENT AWARD
Sam Craig
Hanlan Boat Club 

LIFETIME ACHIEVEMENT AWARD
Tom Kent
Brock/St.Catharines Rowing Club

UMPIRE OF THE YEAR
Tim Henderson
Rowing British Columbia

PRESIDENT’S AWARD
Daniel Bechard
University of Western Ontario Boat Club 

TONY ZASADA  
MEMORIAL AWARD
Cait Whittard
University of Washington / St Catharines Rowing Club 

SENIOR ATHLETE OF THE YEAR
Katie Clark

U23 OF THE YEAR
Maylie Valiquette

JUNIOR OF THE YEAR
Ciana Della Siega & Novella Rusman

PARA OF THE YEAR
Stuart Chase

•
R

O
W

IN
G

 C
A

N
A

D
A

 A
V

IR
O

N

51

•
2

0
2

5
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T

50



RCA INTERNATIONAL 
ACHIEVEMENT AWARD
INTERNATIONAL CHALLENGE REGATTA 

COACH 
Michele Fisher 

JUNIOR WOMEN’S PAIR  
(JW2-) 2ND 
Kennedy Bartel
St. Catharines Rowing Club 

Isabella Essig
St. Catharines Rowing Club/Ridley Graduate Boat Club 

JUNIOR WOMEN’S  
QUADRUPLE SCULLS  
(JW4X) 1ST 
Kennedy Bartel
St. Catharines Rowing Club 

Isabella Essig
St. Catharines Rowing Club/Ridley Graduate Boat Club

Karina Biktimirova
St. Catharines Rowing Club 

Heidi Wall
Saskatoon Rowing Club 

JUNIOR MEN’S  
QUADRUPLE SCULLS  
(JM4X) 3RD 
Henrik Neuspiel
Ottawa Rowing Club 

Jack Coulson
Ottawa Rowing Club 

Maxim Froeschl
Ottawa Rowing Club 

Myles Quintyn
Niagara Falls Rowing Club 

JUNIOR MEN’S  
DOUBLE SCULLS  
(JM2X) 3RD 
William Babineau
Niagara Rowing School 

Jack Ciocca
St. Catharines Rowing Club 

JUNIOR MEN’S  
SINGLE SCULLS  
(JM1X) 3RD 
Myles Quintyn
Niagara Falls Rowing Club

JUNIOR WOMEN’S  
SINGLE SCULLS  
(JW1X) 3RD 
Heidi Wall
Saskatoon Rowing Club

JUNIOR WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS 

COACH 
Dave Calder 

JUNIOR WOMEN’S PAIR  
(JW2-) 3RD 
Ciana Della Siega
Victoria City Rowing Club

Novella Rusman
Brentwood College School 

U23 WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS 

COACH 
Katie Bahain-Steenman 

U23 WOMEN’S EIGHT  
(W8+) 3RD 
Maylie Valiquette
Montreal Rowing Club

Annika Goodwyn
University of San Diego/Burnaby Lake Rowing Club

Gabriella Worobec
University of British Columbia Rowing, Edmonton Rowing Club

Ellexi Fulton
Northeastern University/Shawnigan Lake Rowing Club 

Janette Peachey
North Star Rowing Club

Cait Whittard
University of Washington/St. Catharines Rowing Club

Victoria Grieder
Rutgers University/Ottawa Rowing Club

Mira Calder
University of Washington/Brentwood College School, VCRC

Isobel Campbell
University of California, Berkeley/Ottawa Rowing Club

JUNIOR PAN AMERICAN GAMES

COACH 
Joe Rochon 
Dave Calder

U23 WOMEN’S EIGHT  
(W8+) 2ND 
Teija Patry
University of Western Ontario 

Tess Friar
Peterborough Rowing Club

Firinne Rolfe
Northeastern University/St. Michaels University School 

Riley Richardson
University of Virginia, Ottawa Rowing Club

Ella McKinley
ONGPC/Ottawa Rowing Club 

Alessandra Tuttle
Shawnigan Lake Rowing Club

Jalyn Mowry
Peterborough Rowing Club/Brock University 

Maylie Valiquette
Montreal Rowing Club

Annika Goodwyn
University of San Diego/Burnaby Lake Rowing Club

U23 WOMEN’S FOUR  
(W4-) 3RD 
Firinne Rolfe
Northeastern University/St. Michaels University School

Riley Richardson
University of Virginia, Ottawa Rowing Club

Ella McKinley
ONGPC/Ottawa Rowing Club 

Alessandra Tuttle
Shawnigan Lake Rowing Club

U23 WOMEN’S  
DOUBLE SCULLS  
(W2X) 3RD 
Tess Friar
Peterborough Rowing Club

Jalyn Mowry
Peterborough Rowing Club/Brock University
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial 
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• �Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• �Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Association’s internal control.

• �Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• �Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Association to cease to continue as a going concern.

• �Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

Victoria, Canada					          Grant Thornton LLP 
July 16, 2025					     CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

To the members of Canadian Amateur Rowing Association

OPINION 
We have audited the financial statements of Canadian Amateur Rowing Association, which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at March 31, 2025, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Association as at March 31, 2025, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

BASIS FOR OPINION 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER- RESTATED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 
We draw attention to Note 12 to the financial statements, which explains that certain comparative information 
presented for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been restated. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter.

OTHER MATTER- SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. 
The schedule of governance and national operations, schedule of high performance, and schedule of domestic 
development on page 17 is presented for purposes of additional information and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information has been subject to the auditing procedures applied only to the extent 
necessary to express an opinion in the audit of the financial statements taken as a whole.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FINANCIALS TABLE OF CONTENTS
54	 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

56	 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

57	 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
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60	 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

68	 SCHEDULE OF GOVERNANCE AND NATIONAL OPERATIONS
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CANADIAN AMATEUR ROWING ASSOCIATION

Statement of Financial Position
AS AT MARCH 31 (AUDITED)

2025 2024

OPERATING FUND

NTC  
DEVELOPMENT  

FUND TOTAL TOTAL

ASSETS

Current

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,440,464 $ 500,000 $ 1,940,464 $ 1,242,274 

Accounts receivable (Note 3)  304,899  -    304,899  1,036,038 

Prepaid expenses  199,676  -    199,676  397,714 

Goods and services tax receivable  22,280  -    22,280  58,288 

Interfund transfers  393,992  (393,992)  -    -   

 2,361,311  106,008  2,467,319  2,734,314 

Long–Term

Tangible capital assets (Note 4)  311,675  933,451  1,245,126  1,263,200 

Deposits (Note 5)  -    250,000  250,000  250,000 

 $ 2,672,986  $ 1,289,459  $ 3,962,445  $ 4,247,514 

LIABILITIES

Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 440,133 $  -   $ 440,133 $ 1,482,552 

Deferred revenue (Note 6)  586,904  -    586,904  200,325 

 1,027,037  1,027,037  1,682,877 

Long–Term

Deferred capital contributions (Note 7)  -    1,250,559  1,250,559  1,106,311 

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted  1,221,204  -    1,221,204  725,734 

Internally restricted (Note 10)  113,070  -    113,070  113,070 

Externally restricted  -    38,900  38,900  (17,949)

Invested in tangible capital assets  311,675  -    311,675  637,471 

 1,645,949  38,900  1,684,849  1,458,326 

 $ 2,672,986  $ 1,289,459  $ 3,962,445  $ 4,247,514 

CANADIAN AMATEUR ROWING ASSOCIATION

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 (AUDITED)

2025 2024

OPERATING FUND

UNRESTRICTED 
FUND

CAPITAL 
ASSET  
FUND

INTERNALLY  
RESTRICTED  

FUND

NTC  
DEVELOPMENT  

FUND TOTAL TOTAL

Net Assets, beginning  
of year as previously 
reported

 $ 771,325 $ 1,263,201 $ 530,111   $ -   $ 2,564,637  $ 2,317,309 

Prior period restatement 
(Note 12)  (45,591)  (625,730)  (417,041)  (17,949)  (1,106,311)  (379,253)

As restated  725,734  637,471  113,070  (17,949)  1,458,326  1,938,056 

Excess (deficiency) of  
revenue over expenses  696,036  (332,152)  -   (137,361)  226,523  (479,730)

Interfund Transfers

Net investment in tangible 
capital assets  (200,566)  6,356  -   194,210  -   -  

Net Assets, end of year  $ 1,221,204 $ 311,675 $ 113,070 $ 38,900 $ 1,684,849 $ 1,458,326 

RESTATED–NOTE 12 RESTATED–NOTE 12

_________________________________________________ Director

Lease commitments (Note 13)

_________________________________________________ Director
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CANADIAN AMATEUR ROWING ASSOCIATION

Statement of Operations
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 (AUDITED)

2025 2024

OPERATING FUND

NTC  
DEVELOPMENT  

FUND TOTAL TOTAL

REVENUE

Sport Canada (Note 14)  $ 4,719,765 $ -    $ 4,719,765  $ 6,658,485 

Canadian Olympic Committee  523,802  -    523,802  621,816 

Membership fees  621,952  -    621,952  578,425 

Donations, events and fundraising  295,737 33,702  329,439  486,303 

Competition and camp registrations  454,425  -    454,425  241,017 

Sports associations and foundations  129,166  -    129,166  235,476 

Interest earned  86,023  -    86,023  72,440 

Amortization of deferred capital contributions  -    72,050  72,050  72,050 

 6,830,870  105,752  6,936,622  8,966,012 

EXPENSES

Communication, marketing initiatives  205,908  -    205,907  194,388 

Membership services  328,126  -    328,126  295,443 

Governance and National Operations (Schedule 1)  512,984  -    512,984  524,306 

High Performance (Schedule 2)  4,580,969  108,919  4,689,888  5,679,534 

Domestic Development (Schedule 3)  901,091  -    901,091  2,541,350 

National Training Centre expenditures  -    134,194  134,194  247,835 

 6,529,078  243,113 6,772,190  9,482,856 

Excess (deficiency) of  
revenue over expenses  
before other income

 301,792  (137,361)  164,432  (516,844)

OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of tangible capital assets  62,091  -    62,091  37,114 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses  $ 363,883  $ (137,361)  $ 226,523  $ (479,730)

CANADIAN AMATEUR ROWING ASSOCIATION

Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 (AUDITED)

2025 2024

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses  $ 226,523  $ (479,730)

Items not affecting cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets  218,641  212,925 

Amortization of deferred capital contributions  (72,050)  (72,050)

Gain on sale of assets  (62,092)  (37,114)

 311,022  (375,969)

Change in non-cash working capital items   

Accounts receivable 731,139 (554,519)

Prepaid expenses 198,038 17,827

Goods and services tax 36,008 2,216

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,042,421) 572,217

Deferred revenue 386,579 (76,263)

Net cash generated through operating activities 620,365 (414,491)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the sale of assets  $ 70,031  $ 39,355 

Purchase of capital assets  (208,505)  (199,270)

Cash received for purchase of tangible capital assets  216,298  799,108 

Net cash used by financing and investing activities  77,824  639,193 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  698,190  224,702 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR  1,242,274  1,017,572 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR  $ 1,940,464  $ 1,242,274 

RESTATED–NOTE 12 RESTATED–NOTE 12
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS –  
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
 
1. �PURPOSE OF  

THE ASSOCIATION
Rowing Canada Aviron is the operating    name    
of the Canadian Amateur Rowing Association - 
Association Canadienne d’Aviron Amateur (the 
“Association”) which is a not-for-profit organization  
incorporated  under  the  Canada  Not-for-profit  
Corporations  Act.  As  a  not-for-profit organization, 
the Association is exempt from the payment of 
income tax.

As a Registered Amateur Athletic Association it  
is authorized to issue receipts for tax purposes  
for the donations it receives.

The Association’s principal activity is the 
development of the sport of rowing in Canada and  
it is recognized by the Government of Canada and 
the Canadian Olympic Committee as the national 
governing body for the sport of rowing.

2. �SUMMARY OF 
SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING  
POLICIES 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 
The financial statements were prepared in 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards  
for not-for-profit organizations (“ASNPO”). As a 
result these financial statements are in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles (“Canadian GAAP”).

REVENUE RECOGNITION: 
The Association follows the deferral method of 
accounting for contributions.

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue  
in the year in which the related expenses are 
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized 
as revenue when received or receivable if the 
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated 
and collection is reasonably assured.   Interest is 

recognized on an accrual basis using the effective 
interest rate method.

Pledges from donors are recorded when payment 
is received by the Association or the transfer of 
property is completed.   Pledges restricted for 
future periods are deferred and recognized in the 
year in  which  the  related  expenses  are  incurred. 
Contributions  restricted  for  capital  purposes   
are recorded as deferred capital contributions  
when the amount is invested in tangible capital 
assets and are amortized to revenue on the same 
basis as the related tangible capital assets are 
amortized to expense.

Membership fees are recognized as revenue in  
the period of membership eligibility.

Competition  and  camp  registration  fees  are  
recognized  in  relation  to  timing  of  when  the  
various events occur in the year.

FUND ACCOUNTING: 
The Operating Fund includes all operating assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses.

The Capital Fund includes all assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses related to the Association’s 
tangible capital assets.

The Internally Restricted Funds have been 
designated by the Association for specific uses  
(Note 10). Internally restricted resources can be 
made available for other purposes.

The  NTC  Development  Fund  is  an  externally  
restricted  fund  representing  all  assets,  liabilities, 
revenues and expenses related to the development 
of the National Training Centre (“NTC”) which will 
serve as the home for Canadian rowing, offering 
purpose-built facilities, resources and programs to 
help athletes, coaches, and teams succeed at the 
highest levels of international competition.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS: 
The Association tests long-lived assets for 
impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that its carrying amount  
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognized when the carrying amount of the asset 

exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows 
resulting from its use and eventual disposition. The 
impairment loss is measured as the amount by which 
the carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds 
its fair value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand 
and balances held with banks.

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS: 
Purchased assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Contributed assets are recorded at fair 
value at the date of contribution. Tangible capital 
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives 
on a straight-line basis at the following rates:

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: 
The Association considers any contract creating 
a financial asset, liability or equity instrument as 
a financial  instrument,  except  in  certain  limited  
circumstances.  The  Association  accounts  for  the 
following as financial instruments:

• cash and cash equivalents

• trade and other receivables

• accounts payable and accrued liabilities

INITIAL MEASUREMENT 
The  Association  initially  measures  financial  assets  
and  financial  liabilities  originating,  acquired, issued 
or assumed in arm’s length transactions at fair value.

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 
Financial assets and financial liabilities originating, 
acquired, issued, or assumed in arm’s length 
transactions are subsequently measured as follows:

DERECOGNITION 
The Association  removes financial  liabilities, or 
a portion of, when the obligation is discharged, 
cancelled or expires.

IMPAIRMENT 
Financial assets measured at cost or amortized  
cost are tested for impairment when indicators  
of impairment exist at the end of the reporting 
period. Previously recognized impairment losses  
are reversed to the extent of the improvement 
provided the financial asset is not carried at an 
amount, at the date of the reversal, greater than  
the amount that would have been the carrying 
amount had no impairment loss been recognized 
previously. The amounts of any write-downs or 
reversals are recognized in net income.

 
MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY: 
The  preparation of financial statements in  
conformity with Canadian accounting standards for 
not-for-profit organizations requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosures 
of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any 
adjustments necessary are reported in earnings 
in the  period  in  which  they  become  known.  
Actual  results  could  differ  from  these  estimates.  
The Association’s material estimates include the 
collectability of accounts receivable, accrual of 
accounts payable, useful life of tangible capital asset 
and amortization of deferred capital contributions.

Mechanical Equipment 3 - 5 years

Adaptive Equipment 3 - 5 years

Event Registration System 3 years

Facility Improvements 10 years

Motorboats and Accessories 5 years

NTC Dock System 10 years

NTC Facility Improvements 10 years

Office Software and Hardware 3 years

Rowing Equipment 3 – 5 years

Trailers 10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Financial Instrument

Cash and cash  
equivalents

Accounts receivable

Accounts payable  
and accrued liabilities

Subsequent Measurement

Amortized cost

 
Amortized cost

Amortized cost
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CONTRIBUTED MATERIALS AND SERVICES: 
Donated tangible capital assets and rent are recorded at fair value when received if fair value  
can be reasonably determined and would have otherwise been purchased.

The Association is dependent on the voluntary service of many members and others. Since these services 
are not normally purchased by the Association, and because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, 
donated services are not recognized in these financial statements.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2025 2024

Accounts receivable $ 305,599 $ 1,037,238 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (700) (1,200)

 $ 304,899 $ 1,036,038 

5. DEPOSITS

In 2023, the Association paid a $250,000 deposit towards the development of the National Training 
Centre at Quamichan Lake on Vancouver Island.

The deposit is held under the terms of a lease agreement with the Quamichan Rowing Foundation 
and serves as security for the Association’s obligations under the lease. The deposit is refundable 
only if the agreement is terminated under specific conditions. As of March 31, 2025, management has 
assessed the likelihood of forfeiture as remote. The deposit is classified as a long-term asset and is to 
be maintained as security for the performance of the Association’s obligations under the lease with  
the Quamichan Rowing Foundation as referenced in Note 13.

6. DEFERRED REVENUE
2025 2024

Canadian Olympic Committee $ 455,114 $ 30,114 

RBC Training Ground 96,159 $ 102,558

Other 35,631 67,653

 $ 586,904 $ 200,325

Deferred revenue represents contributions received from the Canadian Olympic Committee, RBC 
Training Ground, future bursaries and externally restricted grants that will be expended in fiscal 2026 
and future periods.

7. DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital contributions represent unamortized contributions which have been used to purchase 
tangible capital assets related to the NTC Development Fund. These contributions will be recognized 
as revenue in future periods as the related tangible capital assets are amortized.

2025 2024

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,106,311 $ 379,253 

Current year additions 216,298 $ 799,108

Current year amortization (72,050) (72,050)

Balance, end of year  $ 1,250,559 $ 1,106,311

Deferred capital contributions include $716,298 of deferred contributions received for tangible capital 
assets not yet in use (2024: $500,000).

4. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
2025 2024

COST
ACCUMULATED 
AMORTIZATION

NET BOOK 
VALUE

NET BOOK 
VALUE

OPERATING FUND

Adaptive equipment  $ 49,980 $ 43,803  $ 6,177  $ 14,980

Event registration system 72,859 72,859 – –

Facility improvements 325,488 121,006 204,482 450,039

Mechanical equipment 292,339 247,900 44,439 70,931

Motorboats and accessories 209,817 169,234 40,583 64,037

Office software and hardware 47,238 42,655 4,583 11,826

Rowing equipment 36,455 36,455 – –

Trailers 62,550 61,186 1,364 –

Vehicles 130,556 120,509 10,047 25,658

$ 1,227,282 $ 915,607 $ 311,675 $ 637,470

COST
ACCUMULATED 
AMORTIZATION

NET BOOK 
VALUE

NET BOOK 
VALUE

NTC DEVELOPMENT FUND

NTC dock system  $ 779,659 $ 219,391  $ 560,268  $ 616,981

NTC facility improvements 252,754 73,780 178,974 8,749

NTC work in progress 194,209 – 194,209 –

$ 1,226,622 $ 293,171 $ 933,451 $ 625,730

Total amortization for the year amounted to $218,641 (2024 - $212,925).

RESTATED–NOTE 12

RESTATED–NOTE 12
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8. TRUST FUNDS

Not included in the financial statements are the following funds which the Association administers and invests  
in the Bank of Montreal Dividend Fund. Amounts are disclosed at cost, with corresponding fair market values.

Hanlan–Keller Pearce–Guest Seagram Zasada 2025

Cost  $ 5,924  $ 15,302 $ 11,501 $ 25,434  $ 58,161

Market Value 14,936 38,126 28,442 63,128 144,632

Hanlan–Keller Pearce–Guest Seagram Zasada 2024

Cost  $ 5,823  $ 15,045 $ 11,309 $ 25,008  $ 57,185

Market Value 13,294 33,934 25,315 56,187 128,730

9. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Contributions from Sport Canada are subject to periodic audit by Sport Canada. Contributions are 
refundable to Sport Canada to the extent that any expense has not complied with the agreed terms 
and conditions. Sport Canada may conduct audits up to 5 years after the end of a reporting period.

10. INTERNALLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Sustainable Organization Reserve Fund provides a source of funds for future financial needs. 
During the year, nil was transferred to the fund (2024: $7,243).

11. �FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS

The Association is exposed to various risks  through  
its financial instruments and has a comprehensive 
risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and 
manag these risks. The following analysis provides 
information about the Association’s risk exposure and 
concentration as of March 31, 2025.

(A) CREDIT RISK 
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party 
will fail to perform its obligations. The Association is 
exposed to credit risk from members. An allowance 
for doubtful accounts is established based upon 
factors surrounding the credit risk of specific accounts, 
historical trends and other information. The Association 
has a significant number of members which minimizes 
concentration of credit risk. The credit risk regarding 
cash and term deposits is considered to be negligible 
because they are held by a reputable financial 
institution with an investment grade external credit 
rating.

(B) LIQUIDITY RISK 
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter 
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities. The Association is exposed to this 
risk mainly in respect of its receipt of funds from its 
funders, members and other related sources, and 
accounts payable and accrued charges.

(C) MARKET RISK 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises 
three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and 
other price risk. The Association is mainly exposed to 
currency risk.

Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion 
that the Association is not exposed to significant 
interest rate risk or other price risks arising from these 
financial instruments.

(i) CURRENCY RISK 
Currency risk is the risk to the Association’s 
excess of revenue over expenses that arise from 
fluctuations of foreign exchange rates and the 
degree of volatility of these rates. The Association 
is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk on 
accounts payable held in foreign denominations. 
The Association does not use derivative instruments 
to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk.

12. �RESTATEMENT OF 
PRIOR YEAR FIGURES

During the March 31, 2025 year end, the Association 
determined that certain adjustments were required 
to the March 31, 2024 comparative figures for an 
identified error in the recognition of various capital 
grants restricted for the purchase of tangible capital 
assets. The capital grants were inadvertently fully 
recognized in the 2022, 2023 and 2024 fiscal years 
and have been adjusted to correctly defer the capital 
contributions and recognize the revenue on the 
same basis as the amortization expense related to 
the underlying tangible capital asset purchased with 
the funds. Additionally, with the application of fund 
accounting, the NTC Development Fund was created 
and corresponding reclassification entries were posted 
to adopt the appropriate presentation. This has resulted 
in comparative figures being adjusted to conform with 
current year presentation. These reclassifications and 
the adjustment to correct the error described above 
have been made to the year ended March 31, 2024 
figures as follow (see next page):

EVENT UMPIRENATIONAL TEAM COACH TOM MORRIS
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13. �LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Association holds leases with the Quamichan 
Rowing Foundation for land (10 years) and the  
Duncan Community Lodge Society for the Training 
Facility (2 years).

The Association’s total future minimum lease 
payments under operating lease commitments are  
as follows:

LAND – QUAMICHAN ROWING FOUNDATION:

TRAINING FACILITY –  
DUNCAN COMMUNITY LODGE SOCIETY:

12. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR FIGURES

AS PREVIOUSLY 
REPORTED ADJUSTMENTS AS RESTATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
AS AT MARCH 31. 2024

Deferred capital contributions $ –  $ 1,106,311  $ 1,106,311

Total net assets 2,564,637 (1,106,311) 1,458,326

Subtotal 2,564,637 – 2,564,637

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Donations, events and fundraising revenue 429,803  56,500  486,303

Amortization of deferred capital contributions –  72,050  72,050

National Training Centre expenditures –  247,835  247,835

National Training Centre Contributions, net 607,773 (607,773)  –

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 247,328 (727,058)  (479,730)

Subtotal 1,284,904 (958,446) 326,458

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 247,328  (727,058)  (479,730)

Amortization of deferred capital contributions – (72,050) (72,050)

Cash received for purchase of tangible capital assets – 799,108 799,108

Subtotal 247,328 – 247,328

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS  
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Net Assets, Opening 2,317,309  (379,253)  1,938,056

Decrease in Operating Fund 771,325 (45,591) 725,734

Decrease in Capital Asset Fund 1,263,201 (625,730) 637,471

Decrease in Internally Restricted Fund 530,111 (417,041) 113,070

Decrease in NTC Development Fund – (17,949) (17,949)

Subtotal $ 4,881,946 $ (1,485,564) $ 3,396,382

2026 $ 24,300

$ 24,300

2026 $ 103,456

2027 103,456

2028 103,456

2029 103,456

2030 103,456

Subsequent Years 413,823

$ 931,103 

14. COMMUNITY SPORT FOR ALL INITIATIVE

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Association received $nil from the Community Sport  
for All Fund administered through Heritage Canada (2024: $1,303,350). The goal of these Funds  
was to create  opportunities  for  identified  equity-deserving  groups  to  engage  in  first-time  
and/or  tailored rowing experiences at community rowing clubs. The funds were expended by  
March 31 as follows:

2025 2024

Community organization grants $ – $ 916,473 

Operations and programming – 224,289

Salaries and benefits – 127,581

General admin – 10,417

Official languages – 24,590

 $ – $ 1,303,350

EVENT SPECTATORS
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CANADIAN AMATEUR ROWING ASSOCIATION

Schedules to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31

SCHEDULE OF GOVERNANCE AND NATIONAL OPERATIONS (SCHEDULE 1) 2025 2024

National office salaries and benefits  $ 289,368  $ 331,124

Governance 80,886 79,107

National office operations 126,889 105,888

International relations and domestic associations 15,841 8,187

$ 512,984 $ 524,306

SCHEDULE OF HIGH PERFORMANCE (SCHEDULE 2) 2025 2024

Events and camps  $ 1,614,652  $ 2,240,107

Salaries and benefits 1,419,819 1,676,105

Sport science and medical 585,878 718,772

National training centres 378,078 373,602

Equipment leases 380,078 311,759

National Team athlete support 104,318 133,650

Equipment amortization 57,252 55,461

Coaches travel and related expenses 20,081 48,564

Facility amortization 20,813 18,490

NTC dock and facility amortization 108,919 103,024

$ 4,689,888 $ 5,679,534

SCHEDULE OF DOMESTIC DEVELOPMENT (SCHEDULE 3) 2025 2024

Sport development (Note 14)  $ 123,272  $ 1,456,484

Regattas and events 578,366 780,058

Safe sport, diversity, inclusion and gender equity 52,918 111,422

Coach education and development 126,507 137,015

Umpires committee 18,791 53,388

Safety and events committee 1,237 2,983

$ 901,091 $ 2,541,350
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N O V A  S C O T I A

Thank you to our incredible community of supporters. Your support and generosity in 
2025 contribute to RCA achieving our vision of Canada being a leading rowing nation.

PROVINCIAL ROWING ASSOCIATIONS

PARTNERS AND SPONSORS

KEVIN LIGHT
kevinlight.photoshelter.com

MEINRUDERBILD
meinruderbild.de

LARRY AND NORA MATHEWSON
facebook.com/larry.mathewson1

CONNOR SCHAFER
instagram.com/schafersshots

ROW ONTARIO 
rowontario.ca

COMMONWEALTH ROWING ASSOCIATION
commonwealthrowing.org

PHOTO CREDITS:

•
  

2
0

2
5

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

•
  

R
O

W
IN

G
 C

A
N

A
D

A
 A

V
IR

O
N

70 71

https://kevinlight.photoshelter.com/index
https://meinruderbild.de
https://www.kevinlightphotography.com/index
https://meinruderbild.de
https://www.facebook.com/larry.mathewson1
https://www.instagram.com/schafersshots/
https://www.rowontario.ca
https://commonwealthrowing.org


321–4371 Interurban Road
Victoria, BC V9E 2C5

1.877.722.4769 (TOLL-FREE)
1.250.220.2503 (FAX)

instagram.com/rowingcanada

facebook.com/rowingcanada

x.com/rowingcanada

linkedin.com/company/rowing-canada-aviron

tiktok.com/@rowingcanadaaviron

rowingcanada.org

https://www.instagram.com/rowingcanada
https://www.facebook.com/RowingCanada/
https://x.com/rowingcanada
https://www.linkedin.com/company/rowing-canada-aviron/
https://www.tiktok.com/@rowingcanadaaviron
https://rowingcanada.org
https://www.facebook.com/RowingCanada/
https://x.com/rowingcanada
https://www.linkedin.com/company/rowing-canada-aviron/
https://www.tiktok.com/@rowingcanadaaviron
https://rowingcanada.org
https://www.instagram.com/rowingcanada
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